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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
INTRODUCTION

Our name is Rick's Cabaret International, Inc. \Weantly own and operate seven adult nightclubsutite names "Rick's Cabaret" and
"XTC" that offer live adult entertainment, restantrand bar operations. Our nightclubs are in Hoystaistin and San Antonio, Texas, and
Minneapolis, Minnesota. We also own and operatadadts only "couples” night club called "Encountéwghich is a club for adult couples
who enjoy the swingers' lifestyle, and a sportsurater the name of "Hummers" in Houston. We also owoperate premiere adult
entertainment Internet websites.

Our online entertainment sites are xxxPassword.&uoaplesTouch.com, OthersTouch.com, and Naughty@&ids The site
xxxPassword.com features adult content licensexuiiit Voice Media, Inc. CouplesTouch.com is a peasosite for those in the swinging
lifestyle. OthersTouch.com is a personals sitegfors, lesbians, and bisexuals. Naughtybids.corari®aline adult auction site. It contains
consumer-initiated auctions for items such as add#os, apparel, photo sets, adult paraphernatizother erotica. There are typically
approximately 10,000 active auctions at these sit@sy given time. We charge the seller a fee&mh successful auction. All of our sites
proprietary software platforms written by us toidet the best experience to the user without beonstrained to off-the-shelf software
solutions.

Our website address is www.ricks.com. We make abikglfree of charge our Annual Report on Form 1®KQuarterly Reports on Form 10-
QSB, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendmenthose reports as soon as reasonably pradiaétbl such material is electronically

filed with the SEC under Securities Exchange Act@34. Information contained in the website shatllme construed as part of this Form 10-
KSB.

References to us in this Form 10-KSB include o@%@wned and 51%-owned subsidiaries.
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES--NIGHTCLUBS

Prior to the opening of the first Rick's Cabare1 @83 in Houston, Texas, the topless nightclubrimss was characterized by small
establishments generally managed by their owneer&ing policies of these establishments were déenthe sites were generally dimly lit,
standards for performers' personal appearanceemsdrality were not maintained and it was custorfarperformers to alternate between
dancing and waiting tables. The quantity and qualitbar service was low and food was not frequyeafiered. Music was usually "hard"
rock and roll, played at a loud level by a disk@g¢ Usually, only cash was accepted. Many busmesasfelt uncomfortable in such
environments. Recognizing a void in the marketafdirst-class adult nightclub, we designed Riclkéb&ret to target the more affluent
customer by providing a unique quality entertaintevironment. The following summarizes our arefagparation that distinguish us:

1



FEMALE ENTERTAINMENT. Our policy is to maintain higstandards for both personal appearance and ditgdor the topless
entertainers and waitresses. Of equal importanag&rformer's ability to present herself attradinand to talk with customers. We prefer
that the performers we hire be experienced dan@éesnake a determination as to whether a parti@agalicant is suitable based on such
factors of appearance, attitude, dress, communitatills and demeanor. At all clubs, except far ldinnesota location, the entertainers are
independent contractors. We do not schedule thaik Wours.

MANAGEMENT. We often recruit staff from inside thepless industry, in the belief that management wikperience in the sector adds to
our ability to grow and attract quality entertasmdvlanagement with experience is able to train remnuits from outside the industry.

COMPLIANCE POLICIES/EMPLOYEES. We have a policyesfsuring that our business is carried on in conityrmith local, state and
federal laws. In particular, we have a "no tolesnmolicy as to illegal drug use in or around therpises. Posters placed throughout the
nightclubs reinforce this policy, as do periodi@onounced searches of the entertainers' locketsrt&imers and waitresses who arrive for
work are not allowed to leave the premises witltbatpermission of management. If an entertaines tkseve the premises, she is not allowed
to return to work until the next day. We continyationitor the behavior of entertainers, waitress®s customers to ensure that proper
standards of behavior are observed.

COMPLIANCE POLICIES/CREDIT CARDS. We review all cigcard charges made by our customers. We hapkaae a formal policy
requiring that all credit card charges must be ey, in writing, by management before any chasgesaccepted. Management is trained to
review credit card charges to ensure that the cimdyges approved for payment are for food, drirkemtertainment.

FOOD AND DRINK. We believe that a key to the suscesour branded adult nightclubs is a qualitystficlass bar and restaurant operation
to compliment our adult entertainment. We emplayise managers who recruit and train professiorsitsiaffs and ensure that each
customer receives prompt and courteous serviceeMfBoy chefs with restaurant experience. Our baragars order inventory and schedule
bar staff. We believe that the operation of a fitass restaurant is a necessary component tg#rat@mn of a premiere adult cabaret, as is the
provision of premium wine, liquor and beer in ortieensure that the customer perceives and olgaod value. Our restaurant operations
provide business lunch buffets and full lunch amhdr menu service with hot and cold appetizensdsa seafood, steak and lobster. An
extensive selection of quality wines is available.

CONTROLS. Operational and accounting controls aseetial to the successful operation of a casinsite nightclub and bar business. We
have designed and implemented internal procedungg@ntrols designed to ensure the integrity ofaperational and accounting records.
Wherever practicable, we separate management peisivom all cash handling so that managemenbisiied from and does not handle any
cash. We use a combination of accounting and palisigentory control mechanisms to maintain a Hegkel of integrity in our accounting
practices. Computers play a significant role intagépg and



analyzing a variety of information to provide maaaggent with the information necessary to efficiemignage and control the nightclub.
Deposits of cash and credit card receipts are meaheach day to a daily income report. In additiwe review on a daily basis (i) cash and
credit card summaries which tie together all cash@edit card transactions occurring at the fowr, the bars in the club and the cashier
station, (ii) a summary of the daily bartenderg&aiout reports, and (iii) a daily cash requirersartalysis which reconciles the previous
day's cash on hand to the requirements for thedas operations. These daily computer report$ mleanagement of any variances from
expected financial results based on historical soivie conduct a monthly independent overview offmancial condition and have engaged
independent accountants to conduct an annual audit.

ATMOSPHERE. We maintain a high design standarduinfacilities and decor. The furniture and furnigfs in the nightclubs are designe:
create the feeling of an upscale restaurant. Thedseystem is designed to provide quality soureatls where conversations can still take
place. The environment is carefully monitored farsic selection, entertainer and waitress appeai@mteall aspects of customer service on a
continuous basis.

VIP ROOM. In keeping with our emphasis on servimng tipper-end of the businessmen's market, somar afightclubs include a VIP room,
which is open to individuals who purchase membesshA VIP room provides a higher level of serviog &uxury.

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION. Our consumer marketinggedegy is to position Rick's Cabarets as prenmgatertainment facilities that
provide exceptional topless entertainment in a yieh discreet, environment. We use a variety olilyigargeted methods to reach our
customers: hotel publications, local radio, cablewision, newspapers, billboards, taxi-cab readards, and the Internet, as well as a variety
of promotional campaigns. These campaigns ensatdhh Rick's Cabaret name is kept before the publi

Rick's Cabaret has received a significant amountedia exposure over the years in national magazueh as Playboy, Penthouse, Glamour
Magazine, The Ladies Home Journal, Time Magazind,Teexas Monthly Magazine. Segments about Rickie la&ed on national and local
television programs such as "Extra" and "Insidgigdi, and we have provided entertainers for Pas\Rew features as well. Business
stories about Rick's Cabaret have appeared in TdeStfeet Journal, Los Angeles Times, Houston Bess Journal, and numerous other
regional publications.

NIGHTCLUB LOCATIONS. We have three Rick's Cabaatdtions in Houston, Texas and one Rick's Cabargfinneapolis, Minnesot:
We also own three nightclubs in San Antonio, Aysdimd Houston, Texas that operate under the nan@ M also own a controlling
interest in and operate an adults only "coupleghinc¢lub in Houston called "Encounters," which idab for adult couples who enjoy the
swingers' lifestyle, and a sport bar called "Hunster

On February 19, 2003, we acquired 51% control eftild Horse Cabaret adult nightclub near Hobbypait, Houston, Texas and will
operate it as part of our popular XTC Cabaret gr@modwill of $79,842 was recorded as a resulhizf acquisition.
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In April 2003, we organized RCI Ventures, Inc. tmjaire Nocturnal Concepts, Inc., which operatearaaddition to our XTC Cabaret group,
called "XTC Galleria". As part of this transactiame transferred our ownership of Tantric Entergjdec. (our subsidiary that operates
Encounters) to RCI Ventures, Inc. As a result ekthtransactions we own a 51% interest in RCI \festunc.

In May 2003, we opened a sports bar called "Humaeisich is located next to Wild Horse CabaretHiouston, Texas.

We sold our New Orleans nightclub in March 199%,iboontinues to use our name under a licensimgeagent. We continually explore
expansion opportunities to open or acquire moratoigbs in strategically valuable locations in theited States.

On June 12, 2003, we entered into an Asset Purdkgreement with Taurus Entertainment Companies, (If@urus”), whereby we acquired
all the assets and liabilities of Taurus in excleafg 3,752,008 shares of Taurus of the 4,002,688we owned plus $20,000 in cash. We
executed an Indemnification and Transaction Feed&ment with Taurus for which we received $270,00€eish, with $140,000 payable at
closing, $60,000 due on July 15, 2003 and $70,@@0ah August 15, 2003. We have received the $6q@9Ment and have restructured the
remaining balance originally due August 15, 2003¢ payable on February 17, 2004 with interesttdeieeon at the rate of 18%.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES--INTERNET ADULT ENTERTAINMENT W EB SITES

In 1999, we began adult Internet Web site operati@ur xxxPassword.com website features adult abtitmnsed through Voice Media, Inc.
We added CouplesTouch.com in year 2002 and Othec$ifoom in year 2003. CouplesTouch.com catersagetin the swinging lifestyle. It
is essentially a dating site for couples. Otherghozom is a similar site catering to the gay, lasband bisexual lifestyles. Our Internet tra
is generated through the purchase of traffic frbirdtparty adult sites or Internet domain owners andptivehase of banner advertisement
"key word" searches from Internet search engimeadHition, the bulk of our traffic now comes fr@@arch engines on which we don't pa
preferential listings. There are numerous adukainment sites on the Internet that we competie. wi

In May 2002, we purchased 700,000 shares of ourammmmon stock from Voice Media, Inc. for an aggtegaice of $918,700 (or $795,302
adjusted for imputed interest) that equals appraséty $1.32 per share. That purchase price wasvbmlarket value on the date of the
purchase. Voice Media, Inc. presently owns noneuofshares of common stock. These shares are pyelselu as treasury shares. We may
cancel these shares at a later date. The contsbpef Voice Media, Inc. is Ron Levi, who was eedtor until June 2002. The terms of this
transaction were the result of arms-length negotiatbetween us and Voice Media, Inc. We belieeetthnsaction was favorable to us in
view of the market value of our common stock arelghyment terms, although no appraisal or fairopsson was done. All management
contracts previously signed relating to the managerof xxxPassword.com will remain in effect. Pansuto the transaction, the payment
schedule is as follows:



(&) The amount of $229,675 due on January 10, 2003;
(b) The amount of $229,675 due on January 10, 2004;
(c) The amount of $229,675 due on January 10, 2808;
(d) A final payment in the amount of $229,675 duelanuary 10, 2006.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES--INTERNET ADULT AUCTION WEB SIT ES

Our adult auction site features erotica and otdattanaterials that are purchased in a bid-ask atettWe charge the seller a fee for each
successful auction. Where previously we operatiedii§idual auctions sites, now we have combinede¢hato one main site,
NaughtyBids.com, to maximize our brand name redagnbf this site. The site contains new and uskdtariented consumer initiate
auctions for items such as adult videos, appahetmsets and adult paraphernalia. NaughtyBidsppsoximately 10,000 items for sale at
any given time. NaughtyBids.com offers third pasgbmasters an opportunity to create residual inciopame web surfers through the
NaughtyBids Affiliate Program, which pays third pawebmasters a percentage of every closing austtmin which the buyer original
came from the affiliate webmaster's site. Therenaraerous auction sites on the Internet that affedt products and erotica.

COMPETITION

The adult topless club entertainment businessgisihricompetitive with respect to price, service éoahtion. All of our nightclubs compete
with a number of locally owned adult clubs, somevbbse names may have name recognition that ethadlsf Rick's Cabaret or XTC.
While there may be restrictions on the locatiom ab-called "sexually oriented business", therenarkarriers to entry into the adult cabaret
entertainment market. For example, there are appaigly 50 adult nightclubs located in the Houstiosa, all of which are in direct
competition with our three Houston cabarets. In hdiapolis, Rick's Cabaret is favorably located downtand is a short walk from the
Metrodome Stadium and the Target Center. Theralisane adult nightclub in Minneapolis in directngpetition with us.

The names "Rick's" and "Rick's Cabaret" and "XT®&at" are proprietary. We believe that the comtimnaof our existing brand name
recognition and the distinctive entertainment emwinent that we have created will allow us to comdtectively in the industry and within
the cities where we operate. Although we beliea We are well positioned to compete successfiligre can be no assurance that we wi
able to maintain our high level of name recognitionl prestige within the marketplace.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS

We are subject to various federal, state and laged affecting our business activities. In partiecuin Texas the authority to issue a permit to
sell alcoholic beverages is governed by the Texashblic Beverage Commission (the "TABC"), whichshthe authority, in its discretion, to
issue the appropriate permits. We presently hdltixa@d Beverage Permit and a Late Hour Permit (fertits"). These Permits are subjec
annual renewal, provided we have complied witmals and regulations governing the permits. Rehefva permit is subject to protest,
which may be made by a law enforcement agency dhdpublic. In the event of a protest, the TABCyrhald a hearing at which time the
views of interested parties are expressed. The TA&Cthe



authority after such hearing not to issue a ren@iviie protested alcoholic beverage permit. Ribk's never been the subject of a protest
hearing against the renewal of Permits. Minnesatadimilar laws that may limit the availability @fpermit to sell alcoholic beverages or that
may provide for suspension or revocation of a petonsell alcoholic beverages in certain circumeséan It is our policy, prior to expanding
into any new market, to take steps to ensure cam@d with all licensing and regulatory requiremdatghe sale of alcoholic beverages as
well as the sale of food.

In addition to various regulatory requirements etifeg the sale of alcoholic beverages, in Houstmi in many other cities, the location of a
topless cabaret is subject to restriction by citfirtance. Topless nightclubs in Houston, Texasabgect to "The Sexually Oriented Business
Ordinance" (the "Ordinance"), which contains prdfoins on the location of an adult cabaret. Thehfisitions deal generally with distance
from schools, churches, and other sexually oriebtesinesses and contain restrictions based oretieemtage of residences within the
immediate vicinity of the sexually oriented busimeBhe granting of a Sexually Oriented BusinessniRél'Business Permit") is not subject to
discretion; the Business Permit must be grantdueijproposed operation satisfies the requiremdriteedOrdinance. See Item 3. "Legal
Proceedings".

In Minneapolis, we are required to be in compliangth state and city liquor licensing laws. Ourdtion in Minneapolis is presently zoned to
enable the operation of a topless cabaret. We avetaintiff in civil litigation against the defendaCity of Minneapolis. On September 16,
2003, the suit was settled mainly on the basistti@City of Minneapolis will enact a late hourseogtion ordinance and allows qualifying
liquor establishments, including us at our curtenation, to operate until 3:00 a.m. We believe,thmathe long run, the restoration of late
hours operation on a permanent basis is prefetalgeing forward with the litigation and in our bésterest. See Item 3. "Legal Proceedin

In San Antonio and Austin we are required to beampliance with city or county sexually orientecsingess ordinances.
TRADEMARKS

Our rights to the trademarks "Rick's" and "Rickab@ret" are established under common law, based aposubstantial and continuous use
of these trademarks in interstate commerce sinemst as early as 1987. We have registered ouceanark, 'RICK'S AND STARS
DESIGN", with the United States Patent and Tradé&nfice. We have also obtained service mark regjisins from the Patent and
Trademark Office for the "RICK'S CABARET" serviceank. There can be no assurance that the stepsweddieen to protect our service
marks will be adequate to deter misappropriation.

EMPLOYEES AND INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS

As of September 30, 2003 we had approximately &80l@yees of which 48 are in management positiorduding corporate and
administrative operation and approximately 632 bfol are engaged in entertainment, food and beeesaryice, including bartenders and
waitresses. None of our employees are represegtadihion and we consider our employee relatiorztgood.
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Additionally, we have independent contractor relaships with more than 600 entertainers, who dfeesgployed and perform at our
locations on a non-exclusive basis as independeritactors. Our entertainers in Minneapolis, Mirotasact as commissioned employees.

SHARE REPURCHASES

As of December 9, 2003 we owned 908,530 treasuagestof our common stock that we acquired in oparket purchases and from
investors who originally acquired the shares fr@mruprivate transactions. We may use these shasejuire assets in the future although
we have no definitive arrangements at this timadguire any assets.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive office is located at 505rtidBelt, Houston, Texas 77060 in leased faciliessisting of a total of 3,680 square feet.
We pay rent of approximately $3,284 per month ffiis space. We believe that our offices are adedoateur present needs and that suitable
space will be available to accommodate our futeeds.

We own the three locations of Rick's Cabaret (fwblouston and one in Minneapolis) and the two locatof XTC (one in Austin and one in
San Antonio). We lease the South Houston locafammerly known as the Chesapeake Bay Club. We dwrdcation of our Encounters
couples club in Houston. We lease XTC Wildhorse ldnchmers locations.

The Rick's Cabaret located on Bering Drive in Honstas aggregate 12,300 square feet of space.aléueck as of September 30, 2003, that
we owe on the mortgage is $331,364 and the intesitssis prime plus 1%. Currently, we pay $4,28eonthly principal and interest
payments. The last mortgage payment is due in 20va balloon payment of $297,893.

The Rick's Cabaret located on North Belt Drive imuldton has 12,000 square feet of space. This fyoigeswned by us free and clear.

The Rick's Cabaret located in Minneapolis has G gtfuare feet of space. The balance as of Septe&8@b2003, that we owe on the
mortgage is $2,198,734 and the interest rate isW&opay $22,732 in monthly principal and interesgrpents. The last mortgage payment is
due in 2018.

The XTC nightclub in Austin has 8,600 square fdetpace, which sits on 1.2 acres of land. The lealari the mortgage that we owe as of
September 30, 2003 is $186,841 and the interesbfat1%. Currently the monthly principal and im&rpayment is $9,822. The last payment
is due in June 2005.

We own XTC nightclub in San Antonio, which has Q&®guare feet of space.

Our Encounters club has 8,000 square feet of spdeebalance of the mortgage as of September 33, 20at we owe is $43,097 and the
interest rate is 7%. Currently, we pay $1,500 imthty principal and interest payments. The lasttgege payment is due in 2004 with a
balloon payment of $23,140.

Our Citation Land LLC owns a 350-acre ranch in Braz County, Texas, and approximately 50 acreswafland in Wise County, Texas.
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The balance as of September 30, 2003 that we owleeoBrazoria County ranch mortgage is $296,795thadnterest rate is 9%. We pay
$2,573 in monthly principal and interest paymefmtse last mortgage payment is due in February 20@6awballoon payment of $287,920.

The balance as of September 30, 2003 that we owleeowise County raw land mortgage is $143,559thadnterest rate is 12%. We pay
$1,537 in monthly principal and interest paymeftse last mortgage payment is due in March 2026.

We lease the property in Houston, Texas, where&Chwsapeake Bay Cabaret is located. We acquirenpttrations of the Chesapeake Bay
Club in May 2000. The lease term is for ten yeart) an additional ten-year lease option thereaft@e initial lease terms are $12,000
monthly plus 4% of gross revenues that are in exo€$125,000 per month (excluding payments thamake to dancers), with the total
monthly rent not to exceed $20,000 per month.

We lease the property in Houston, Texas, whereXa@ Wildhorse is located. The lease term is foefiears, with an additional five-year
lease option thereafter. The initial base renti845 monthly for year one and two, with an annoedease of $570 thereafter.

We lease the property in Houston, Texas, wheréltimamers is located. The lease term is for five yeaith an additional five-year lease
option thereafter. The initial base rent is $2,862nonthly for year one and two, with an annuaiease of $325 thereafter.

We lease the property in Houston, Texas, whereXd@ Galleria is located. The lease term is for ¢hyears, with an additional three-year
lease option thereafter. The monthly rent is $8,500

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS ORDINANCE OF HOUSTON, TE XAS

In January 1997, the City Council of the City ofudton passed a comprehensive new Ordinance raguthag location of and the conduct
within Sexually Oriented Businesses. The new Omiieaestablished new minimum distances that Sex@alnted Businesses may be
located from schools, churches, playgrounds aneratbixually oriented businesses. There were nagioos in the Ordinance exempting
previously permitted sexually oriented businessems the effect of the new Ordinance. In 1997, weeweformed that one of our Houston
locations at 3113 Bering Drive failed to meet thguirements of the Ordinance and accordingly thewl of our Business License at that
location was denied.

The Ordinance provided that a business which wagde renewal of its operating permit due to clearig distance requirements under the
Ordinance would be entitled to continue in operafar a period of time (the "Amortization Periodf'fhe owner were unable to recoup, by
the effective date of the Ordinance, its investnietie business that was incurred through the dfatiee passage and approval of the
Ordinance.



We filed a request with the City of Houston reqirgstain extension of time during which operationswatnorth Houston facility could
continue under the Amortization Period provisiohthe Ordinance since we were unable to recoupraastment prior to the effective date
of the Ordinance. An administrative hearing wasitl the City of Houston to determine the apprdpriamortization Period to be granted to
us. At the Hearing, we were granted an amortizgtieniod that has since been reached. We haveghteto appeal any decision of the
Hearing official to the district court in the StatETexas.

In May 1997, the City of Houston agreed to defeplementation of the Ordinance until the constitudility of the entire Ordinance was
decided by court trial. In February 1998, the WD&trict Court for the Southern District of Tex&tguston Division, struck down certain
provisions of the Ordinance, including the prouwisinandating a 1,500 foot distance between a cldisahools, churches and other sexually
oriented business, leaving intact the provisiothef750 foot distance as it existed prior to thei$ton, Texas Ordinance.

The City of Houston has appealed the District Ceuulings with the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. the event that the City of Houston is
successful in the appeal, we could be out of caanpk and such an outcome could have an adversetiopaur future. Our nightclub in our
south Houston location has a valid permit/licersg will expire in December 2005. The permits far north Houston location and our
Bering Drive location have expired.

There are other provisions in the Houston, Texairfance, such as provisions governing the levégbfing in a sexually oriented business,
the distance between a customer and dancer wiildahcer is performing in a state of undress aadigions regarding the licensing of
dancers and club managers that were upheld byotlm¢ which may be detrimental to our business. Wepncert with other sexually orient
businesses, are appealing these aspects of théadpliexas Ordinance.

In November, 2003, a three judge panel from th#hFfircuit Court of Appeals published their opiniswhich affirmed the Trial Court's ruling
regarding lighting levels, customer and dancer isjum distances and licensing of dancers and. Sta# Court of Appeals, however, did not
follow the Trial Court's ruling regarding the dist@ from which a club may be located from a chunchchool. The Court of Appeals held
that a distance measurement of 1,500 feet woultpbeld upon a showing by the City of Houston tt&tiaims that there were alternative
sites available for relocating the clubs could blessantiated. The case was remanded for trial ®istue of the alternative sites.

There are other technical issues which could amtditly bear upon the location of the clubs whichreweot decided at the trial level during
initial phase of the case. It is anticipated thase technical issues will be joined in the Trial@ after the appellate remedies have been
exhausted. The City has not sought to modify arthefterms of the injunction against enforcemerdrof location provision of the ordinance
while the appellate process continues. The pantes asked for a rehearing from the appellate pamwill ask that the case be heard and
considered by the entire Fifth Circuit. If an undaable ruling is again issued by the Court of Appleen the parties will request review by
United States Supreme Court. In the event thatourt appeal is unsuccessful, such an outcome ¢@wd an adverse impact on us.
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In April 1998, the City of Houston began enforcicgytain portions of the Ordinance, including thetalice requirement between a customer
and a dancer while dancing, and the requiremenhtitnacers be licensed. The City of Houston's eefoent of the Ordinance could have an
adverse impact on the Rick's locations in Houst@xas. The current requirement of a three-footdist between a dancer and a customer
could reduce customer satisfaction and could résditwer customers at the Houston location. Thyirement that a dancer be licensed ¢
result in fewer dancers working, which could hameadverse impact on the Houston location. It isnamkn what future impact the
enforcement of the Ordinance may have our Houstoations.

CITY OF MINNEAPOLIS AFTER HOURS ORDINANCE

In December 1999, we filed a lawsuit against thy 6f Minneapolis in a case named RCI Entertainnf¥fibnesota), Inc. v. City of
Minneapolis. No. 0-362, in the Hennepin County BéstCourt. We are the Plaintiff in this matter. \Wlaim that the city violated our
constitutional and other rights by the city notitakany action on our application for a permit tmduct after-hours entertainment operations
at our Minneapolis location. The court granted mation for a temporary injunction pursuant to whied now conduct after-hours adult
entertainment operations in our Minneapolis logatiatil 3:00 a.m. daily.

The City of Minneapolis took no appeal from the pamary injunction, the appeal time has expired, tednjunction remains in full force a
effect. Also included in the lawsuit was a claim damages from having wrongfully been denied tghtrio conduct aftehours entertainme
for over one year. In September 2000, the city ddee summary judgment, seeking dismissal of thieislits entirety. That motion was
denied, and the city appealed that denial to thensota Court of Appeals. The Minnesota Court gbegts dismissed the City of
Minneapolis's appeal for lack of appellate jurisidic. The City of Minneapolis has also repealeddfdinance that permits liquor
establishments in the central business districtneain open from 1:00 a.m. to 3:00 a.m., for thgppse of conducting entertainment. Liquor
establishments having such a license will be reguio cease operating from 1:00 a.m. until 3:0Q asvof December 31, 2001. However, we
remained open, not pursuant to a license, but patgo the temporary injunction, until 3 a.m. Ompt@eber 16, 2003, the lawsuit was settled
on the following basis:

1. The City of Minneapolis will enact a late hoorgeration ordinance that complies with the Firstefiment and allows qualifying liquor
establishments, including us at our current locgtio operate until 3:00 a.m. daily.

2. Upon issuance of a license to us, the presesulia will be dismissed with prejudice, except thmathe event the City would again repeal its
late night hours license, we would retain the righsue the City.

We believe that, in the long run, the restoratibfate hours operation on a permanent basis iemble to going forward with the litigation
and in our best interest.
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OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

In April 2003, a suit was filed in the United Stf@istrict Court for the Western District of Tex&an Antonio division, as a result of the City
of having previously adopted a new ordinance, whachong other things, banned nude dancing. Thisasked the Court to declare the
ordinance unconstitutional and enjoin the City frenforcing it. It is probable that we will procetdtrial if we elect to continue our present
entertainment format.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

We held our Annual Meeting of Shareholders on At@&s 2003. Eric S. Langan, Robert L. Watters, &telv. Jenkins, Alan Bergstrom and
Travis Reese were nominated and elected as Disewiitht the following vote results at the shareholeeting:

For  Against Abstain

Eric S. Langan 2,399,183 16,585  -O-
Robert L. Watters 2,399,183 16,585 -0-
Steven L. Jenkins 2,399,183 16,585 -0-
Alan Bergstrom 2,399,183 16,585  -0-
Travis Reese 2,399,183 16,585 -0-

At the Annual Meeting, the Shareholders ratifieditfély Penn as the Company's Independent Auditaith, tive following vote results:

2,398,978 VOTES FOR RATIFICATION

12,175 VOTES AGAINST RATIFICATION

960 ABSTAIN

While no other matters were presented at the Ankigadting, the following votes were submitted by i®ha@lders with respect to any other
business coming before the Annual Meeting of Stadens:

2,383,832 VOTES FOR OTHER BUSINESS

26,423 VOTES AGAINST OTHER BUSINESS

5,113 ABSTAIN

The meeting was adjourned when all matters of lassifad been discussed.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ SmallCarkdt under the symbol "RICK." The following talslets forth the quarterly high
and low of sales prices per share for the commaecksOur fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.
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COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGE
HIGH LOW

Fiscal 2002

First Quarter. $3.40 $2.61
Second Quarter $3.15 $2.70
Third Quarter. $2.99 $2.46
Fourth Quarter $2.82 $2.01

Fiscal 2003

First Quarter. $2.35 $2.00
Second Quarter $2.48 $1.45
Third Quarter. $1.65 $1.11
Fourth Quarter $1.75 $1.25

On December 9, 2003, the last sales price for dnenton stock as reported on the NASDAQ SmallCap ktarkas $1.76. On December 9,
2003, there were approximately 800 stockholdergodrd of the common stock.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
The transfer agent and registrar for our commocksi® American Stock Transfer & Trust Company.
DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not paid, and do not currently intend p qash dividends on our common stock in the foraskeefuture. Our current policy is to
retain all earnings, if any, to provide funds f@eoation and expansion of our business. The deidaraf dividends, if any, will be subject to
the discretion of the Board of Directors, which ntaysider such factors as our results of operatioancial condition, capital needs and
acquisition strategy, among others.

During 2002, we purchased 700,000 shares of ounmmmstock from Voice Media, Inc. for $795,302 (ad@d for the imputed interest).
Also, under the stock buy-back program approvetlime 2001, we purchased 120,330 shares of our coratock at an average price of
$2.55 per share, or an aggregate purchase pri806,210. During 2003, we purchased 57,500 shais average price of $2.07 per share,
or an aggregate purchase price of $118,649.

On September 16, 2003, our board of directors aizimb us to repurchase up to $500,000 worth ofcourmon stock.
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

During the quarter ended September 30, 2003, wanbadles of unregistered shares of our commork.stoc

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

NUMBER OF SECURITI
ISSUED UPON EXERC
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS,
AND RIGHTS

PLAN CATEGORY (@)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders

TOTAL

RE
ES TO BE FUTU
ISE OF WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXERCISE
WARRANTS PRICE OF OUTSTANDING OPTIONS, (EXCLU
WARRANTS AND RIGHTS

(b)

423,000 $ 2.44
75,000 $ 1.87
498,000 $ 2.35

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

MAINING AVAILABLE FOR

RE ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY

COMPENSATION PLANS

DING SECURITIES REFLECTED
IN COLUMN (a))

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

We do not currently pay any cash directors' feaswe pay the expenses of our directors in attendoard meetings. In September 2003, we
issued 10,000 options to each Director who is a begrof our audit committee and 5,000 options toaiber Directors. These options have a
strike price of $1.40 per share and expire in Sap& 2008.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLANS

While we have been successful in attracting arainiglg qualified personnel, we believe that ouufatsuccess will depend in part on our
continued ability to attract and retain highly dfiatl personnel. We pay wages and salaries thdielieve are competitive. We also believe
that equity ownership is an important factor in ability to attract and retain skilled personneke Wave adopted a stock option plans (the
"Plans") for employees and directors. The purpdshePlans is to further our interests, our subsiels and our stockholders by providing
incentives in the form of stock options to key eaygles and directors who contribute materially tosuccess and profitability. The grants
recognize and reward outstanding individual perfomoes and contributions and will give such persopsoprietary interest in us, thus
enhancing their personal interest in our continegetess and progress. The Plans also assist usiaadbsidiaries in attracting and retaining
key employees and directors. The Plans are admietby the Board of Directors. The Board of Dioesthas the exclusive power to select
the participants in the Plans, to establish thmsesf the options granted to each participant, idexvthat all options granted shall be granted
at an exercise price equal to at least 85% ofdherfarket value of the common stock covered byothtéon on the grant date and to make all
determinations necessary or advisable under thesPla
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In 1995 we adopted the 1995 Stock Option Plan'885 Plan"). A total of 300,000 shares may be gruand sold under the 1995 Plan. As
of December 9, 2003 a total of 167,500 stock ogtioed been granted under the 1995 Plan, 92,500ichwvere not exercised and have
expired and 75,000 of which are presently outstamdione of the options granted under the 1995 Réae been exercised. We do not plan
to issue any additional options under the 1995.Plan

In August 1999 we adopted the 1999 Stock Option Rlze "1999 Plan"). A total of 500,000 shares rbaygranted and sold under the 1999
Plan. As of September 30, 2003, 423,000 stock nptame presently outstanding under the 1999 Ptare of which have been exercised.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

We have a three-year employment agreement withEriangan (the "Langan Agreement"). The LangareAgrent extends through January
1, 2004 and provides for an annual base salarg@®® $00. The Langan Agreement also provides fdigyaation in all benefit plans
maintained by us for salaried employees. The Lafgaeement contains a confidentiality provision. Wée not established long-term
incentive plans or defined benefit or actuariahpldJnder a prior employment agreement, Mr. Langarived options to purchase 125,000
shares at an exercise price of $1.87 per sharehwigisted in August 1999. We intend to enter inbe@ Employment Agreement with Mr.
Langan at the end of the current term.

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our audited consolidated financial statataeand the related notes to the financial
statements included in this annual report.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT AND INFORMATION

We are including the following cautionary statemierthis Form 10-KSB to make applicable and takeaadage of the safe harbor provision
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform ActX#95 for any forward-looking statements made bgrusn behalf of us. Forward-looking
statements include statements concerning planscigs, goals, strategies, future events or padoce and underlying assumptions and
other statements, which are other than stateméhistorical facts. Certain statements in this FA@®KSB are forward-looking statements.
Words such as "expects,” "believes," "anticipatésdy,” and "estimates” and similar expressionsraended to identify forward-looking
statements. Such statements are subject to riskararertainties that could cause actual resulisfier materially from those projected. Such
risks and uncertainties are set forth below. Oyeetations, beliefs and projections are expressgaod faith and we believe that they have a
reasonable basis, including without limitation, examination of historical operating trends, datatained in our records and other data
available from third parties. There can be no as®ue that our expectations, beliefs or projectisitisresult, be achieved, or be accomplist
In addition to other factors and matters discusdselwhere in this Form 10-KSB, the following argoortant factors that in our view could
cause material adverse affects on our financiaflitmm and results of operations: the risks andeutainties related to our future operational
and financial results, the risks and uncertaimédsting to our Internet operations, competitivetéas, the timing of the openings of other
clubs, the availability of acceptable financinguad corporate expansion efforts, our dependendegmpersonnel, the ability to manage
operations and the future operational strengthariagement, and the laws governing the operatiaadwat entertainment businesses. We |
no obligation to update or revise these forwarddiog statements to reflect the occurrence of fuewents or circumstances.
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GENERAL
We operate in two businesses in the adult enteniin industry:

1. We own and operate upscale adult nightclubdrsgprimarily businessmen and professionals. Oghtaiubs offer live adult entertainme
restaurant and bar operations. We own and opezansadult nightclubs under the name "Rick's Cabarel "XTC" in Houston, Austin and
San Antonio, Texas, and Minneapolis, Minnesota.alge own and operate an adult-themed club calleddgnters” that serves the couples
or "swingers™ market and a sport bar called therfithers" in Houston. No sexual contact is permittieany of our locations.

2. We have extensive Internet activities.

a) We currently own three adult Internet member$tab sites at www.couplestouch.com, www.otherstaarh, and
www.xxxpassword.com. We acquire xxxpassword.comaintent from wholesalers.

b) We operate an online auction site www.naughtybiain. This site provides our customers with thgoofunity to purchase adult products
and services in an auction format. We earn revehyeharging fees for each transaction conducteth@mutomated site.

Our nightclub revenues are derived from the sal&abr, beer, wine, food, merchandise, cover casrghembership fees, independent
contractors' fees, commissions from vending and Afidthines, valet parking and other products andcgerOur Internet revenues are
derived from subscriptions to adult content Intémmebsites, traffic/referral revenues, and comrissiearned on the sale of products and
services through Internet auction sites, and adbgvities. Our fiscal year end is September 30.

In fiscal 2002, we took a one time charge of $2,382 as a result of the cumulative effect of thengfe in accounting for goodwill. We
performed our annual evaluation as of Septembe2@03. No impairment losses were identified assaltef this evaluation.

Beginning in fiscal 2002 and continuing througlték2003, we greatly reduced our usage of promatipricing for membership fees for our
adult entertainment web sites. This reduced ougrregs from these web sites.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettaertain reported amounts in the financialesteents and accompanying notes.
Estimates and
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assumptions are based on historical experiencecdsted future events and various other assumgtansve believe to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Estimates and assumptions nmgpyader different assumptions or conditions. Waleate our estimates and assumptions
on an ongoing basis. We believe the accountingieslibelow are critical in the portrayal of ourditial condition and results of operations.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable trade is comprised of creditl charges, which are generally converted to casiwo to five days after a purchase is
made. The accounts receivable other is comprisethployee advances and other miscellaneous redesvalie recognize allowances for
doubtful accounts when, based on our judgmentygistances indicate that accounts receivable wilbeaollected.

Inventories

Inventories include alcoholic beverages, food, @othpany merchandise. Inventories are carried dbther of cost or average cost, which
approximates actual cost determined on a firstifist-out ("FIFO") basis or market.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities at September 30, 2003 coof®immon stock. As of September 30, 2003, wesflathe Company's marketable
securities as available-for-sale securities, whighcarried at fair value, with unrealized gaind kErsses reported as other comprehensive
income (loss) within the stockholders' equity satif the balance sheet. The cost of marketabl#yesgrcurities sold is determined on a
specific identification basis. The fair value of tiketable equity securities is based on quoted markees.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depiatia computed using the straight-line methodrdkie estimated useful lives of the assets
for financial reporting purposes. Buildings havémated useful lives between 31-40 years. Furnjtegeiipment and leasehold improvements
have estimated useful lives between five and sgears. Expenditures for major renewals and bettetsritbat extend the useful lives are
capitalized. Expenditures for normal maintenanatrapairs are expensed as incurred. The cost efsassld or abandoned and the related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from tlo®asts and any gains or losses are charged otetddithe accompanying statement of
operations of the respective period.

Goodwill

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goddwd Other Intangibles Assets, which addresseadheunting for goodwill and other
intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill imtahgible assets with indefinite lives are nogenamortized, but reviewed on an annual
basis for impairment. We adopted SFAS effectiveobet 1, 2001.
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Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue at the point-of-sale uponpeoécash, check, or credit card charge. Thitudes VIP Room Memberships, since the
memberships are non-refundable and we have ndisemt obligation for future performance.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing expenses is primarily posed of costs related to public advertisementgjarehways, which are used for
promotional purposes. Advertising and marketingegiges are expensed as incurred and are incluagetiating expenses.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe future tax consequences attributable tiefices between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitind their respective tax bases. Deferred tax sasek liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeerytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities change in tax rates is recognized in income irpréod that includes the enactment date. In
addition, a valuation allowance is establishecetiuce any deferred tax asset for which it is datexththat it is more likely than not that so
portion of the deferred tax asset will not be =i

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 AS COMPARED TO THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, @ebasolidated total revenues of $15,059,569, coetpt consolidated total revenues of
$15,557,302 for the year ended September 30, 2002 was a decrease of $497,733 or 3.20%. Whilbadean increase in total revenues in
our existing and new nightclub operations of $562,3he decrease in total revenues resulted franinternet businesses was $1,059,635.
Revenues from nightclub operations for same-looateme-period increased by 2.30%, while revenuési@fnet businesses for same-sites
same-period decreased by 50.16%. The overall dezrgas primarily due to the decrease in our Inteaovities and the general decrease in
revenues in the entertainment industry post Septerhib 2001.

Our net income before minority interest and cumwéagffect of an accounting change for the yeaedr8leptember 30, 2003 was $403,936
compared to $262,552 for the year ended Septenfth@082. The increase in net income was primauily th the gain from the sales of our
subsidiary Taurus Entertainment Companies, Inc.r@tiincome from operations for nightclub operatioras $1,934,574 for the year ended
September 30, 2003 compared with $2,121,642 foy¢le ended September 30, 2002. Our net income dperations for our Internet
businesses was $36,421 for the year ended Sept@&dp2003 compared with $169,793 for the year er@atember 30, 2002. Our net
income for our nightclub operations for the sameatmn-same-period increased by 1.94%. Our nenirgcfor our Internet operations for the
same-web-site-same-period decreased by 78.55%.ad/a het loss of $2,271,180 for the year endedeSemr 30, 2002 as a result of the
cumulative effect of the change in the accountorggbodwill of $2,532,384.

17



Our cost of goods sold for the year ended Septethe2003 was 14.58% of total revenues compard® @0 % of related revenues for the
year ended September 30, 2002. The decrease wasichaily to decrease in costs of our Interneivaats. Our cost of goods sold for t
nightclub operations for the year ended SeptemB®g2@03 was 14.40% of our total revenues from olpérations compared to 15.36% for
the year ended September 30, 2002. We continuedffmuts to achieve reductions in cost of goods sdlthe club operations through
improved inventory management. We are continuipgogram to improve margins from liquor and foodesadnd food service efficiency. C
cost of sales from our Internet operations forybar ended September 30, 2003 was 17.41% compadi8% of related revenues for the
year ended September 30, 2002. We have implememgadures to reduce expenses in our Internet opease

Our payroll and related costs for the year endeuie®eber 30, 2003 were $5,393,708 compared to $5493or the year ended September
30, 2002. The increase was primarily due to thesiage in payroll in opening new club and corpoaatévities. Our payroll for our nightclub
operations for same-location-same-period increagetl 15%. Our payroll for same-site-same-periodnmét operations increased by 32.92%.
We believe that our labor and management stafldeare at appropriate levels.

Our other general and administrative expensestoyéar ended September 30, 2003 were $7,112,97daced to $6,819,634 for the year
ended September 30, 2003. The increase was pynaad to the increase in taxes & permit, rent, iasae, utilities, and advertising &
marketing expenses from opening new locations. IGtbking, general and administrative expensesdone-location-same-period for the
nightclub operations increased by 6.91%, whilestime expenses for same-site same-period for Intepeeations decreased by 31.61%.

Our interest expense for the year ended Septenth@083 was $384,221 compared to $370,401 for ¢lae gnded September 30, 2002. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in dahated to our purchase of 763,830 of our sharesgrivate transaction (these share are now
treasury shares). However, we have decreased ngitdom debt to $4,026,335 as of September 30, 200®ared to debt of $4,607,353 a
September 30, 2002.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At September 30, 2003, we had working capital &f,385 compared to working capital deficit of $32,3% of September 30, 2002. Because
of the large volume of cash we handle, stringesh@ntrols have been implemented. At Septembe2(IB, our cash and cash equivalents
were $604,865 compared to $733,366 at Septemb@08Q,

Our net cash provided by operating activities mykear ended September 30, 2003 was $586,326 cethfma$1,285,545 for the year ended
September 30, 2002. The decrease in cash provideddrating activities was primarily due to thergese in net changes in operating assets
and liabilities, and decrease in impairment of goidd
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Our depreciation for the year ended September@8 Zvas $531,561 compared to $490,021 for the greded September 30, 2002.

In our opinion, working capital is not a true inafior of our financial status. Typically, businessesur industry carry current liabilities in
excess of current assets because businessesimdastry receive substantially immediate paymenstdes, with nominal receivables, while
inventories and other current liabilities normaibrry longer payment terms. Vendors and purveyfiemngemain flexible with payment tern
providing businesses in our industry with oppottigsito adjust to short-term business down turns.cahsider the primary indicators of
financial status to be the long-term trend of rexegrowth, the mix of sales revenues, overall ash and profitability from operations and
the level of long-term debt.

We have not established lines of credit or finagather than our existing debt. There can be norasse that we will be able to obtain
additional financing on reasonable terms in tharktif at all, should the need arise.

We believe that the adult entertainment industapdard of treating entertainers as independentaxiots provides us with safe harbor
protection to preclude payroll tax assessment ffior years. We have prepared plans that we belieNgrotect our profitability in the event
that sexually oriented business industry is reqliineall states to convert dancers who are nowgaddent contractors into employees.

The sexually oriented business industry is higlognpetitive with respect to price, service and lmrgtas well as the professionalism of the
entertainment. Although we believe that we are \pelitioned to compete successfully in the futtiiere can be no assurance that we will be
able to maintain our high level of name recognitonl prestige within the marketplace.

SEASONALITY

Our nightclub operations are significantly affecbydseasonal factors. Historically, we have expeeel reduced revenues from April through
September with the strongest operating resultsraaguduring October through March. Our experieimmicates that there are no seasonal
fluctuations in our Internet activities.

GROWTH STRATEGY

We believe that our nightclub operations can camito grow organically and through careful entitp imarkets and demographic segments
with high growth potential. Upon careful marketaasch, we may open new clubs. We may acquire egistubs in locations that are
consistent with our growth and income targets,&@hith appear receptive to the upscale club forrmdaave developed. We may form joint
ventures or partnerships to reduce start-up anchtipg costs, with us contributing equity in therfoof our brand name and management
expertise. As is the case of our Encounters cougilds we may also develop new club concepts tfeatansistent with our management and
marketing skills. We may also acquire real estateonnection with club operations, although sonubgimay be in leased premises.
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We also expect to continue to grow our Internefipoenters. We plan to focus on high-margin In&ractivities that leverage our marketing
skills while requiring a low level of start-up cagid ongoing operating costs.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The information required by this Item 7 is includadhis report beginning on page F-1.

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There have been no changes in or disagreementgedthuntants on accounting and financial disclosure
ITEM 8A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Eric Langan, our Chief Executive Officer and CHi@fiancial Officer, has concluded that our disclestontrols and procedures are
appropriate and effective. He has evaluated thestals and procedures as of a date within 90 dé¥fse filing date of this report on Form
10-KSB. There were no significant changes in oterimal controls or in other factors that could figantly affect these controls subsequent
to the date of their evaluation, including any eetive actions with regard to significant deficiezscand material weaknesses.

PART IlI
ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AN D CONTROL
PERSONS; COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(A) OF THE EXCHA NGE ACT
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Directors are elected annually and hold officeluht next annual meeting of our stockholders dil their successors are elected and
qualified. Officers are elected annually and sextvihe discretion of the Board of Directors. Thisrao family relationship between or among
any of our directors and executive officers. OuaBbof Directors consists of five persons.

Name Age P osition

Eric S. Langan 35 Director, Chief Execu tive Officer, President and
Chief Financial Offic er

Travis Reese 34 Director and V.P.-Dir ector of Technology

Robert L. Watters 52 Director

Alan Bergstrom 57 Director

Steven Jenkins 47 Director
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Eric S. Langan has been our Director since 1998andPresident since March 1999. Mr. Langan is alsoacting Chief Financial Officer.
He has been involved in the adult entertainmeninless since 1989. Mr. Langan has also served d@rdsdent and Director of Taurus
Entertainment Companies, Inc. since November 18®7Langan resigned as President of Taurus in 2008 and as Director in September
2003. From January 1997 through the present, hbadldshe position of President of XTC Cabaret, From November 1992 until January
1997, Mr. Langan was the President of Bathing HBeaulnc. Since 1989, Mr. Langan has exercised gene control over more than a
dozen adult entertainment businesses. Through Hutséties, Mr. Langan has acquired the knowledge skills necessary to successfully
operate adult entertainment businesses.

Robert L. Watters is our founder and has been dagcr since 1986. Mr. Watters was our Presidedt@ur Chief Executive Officer from
1991 until March 1999. He was also a founder in9188d operator until 1993 of the Colorado Bar &liGain adult club located in Houston,
Texas and in 1988 performed site selection, neigatithe property purchase and oversaw the desijpemitting for the club that became
the Cabaret Royale, in Dallas, Texas. Mr. Watteasticed law as a solicitor in London, England &ndualified to practice law in New York
State. Mr. Watters worked in the international gagup of the accounting firm of Touche, Ross & @mw succeeded by Deloitte & Touche)
from 1979 to 1983 and was engaged in the privatetise of law in Houston, Texas from 1983 to 1986en he became involved in our full-
time management. Mr. Watters graduated from thedbarSchool of Economics and Political Science, ©rsity of London, in 1973 with a
Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree and in 1975 wilaster of Laws degree from Osgoode Hall Law SEhaark University.

Steven L. Jenkins has been a Director since Judg. Zince 1988, Mr. Jenkins has been a certifiddipaccountant with Pringle Jenkins &
Associates, P.C., located in Houston, Texas. Mikids is the President and owner of Pringle Jenkidssociates, P.C. Mr. Jenkins has a
BBA Degree (1979) from Texas A&M University. Mr.nléns is a member of the AICPA and the TSCPA.

Alan Bergstrom became our Director in 1999. Sine@71 Mr. Bergstrom has been the Chief Operatingc®ffof Eagle Securities, which is

investment consulting firm. Mr. Bergstrom is alsregistered stockbroker with Rhodes Securities, Finom 1991 until 1997, Mr. Bergstrom
was a Vice President--Investments with Principabcial Securities, Inc. Mr. Bergstrom holds a B.B)egree in Finance, 1967, from the
University of Texas.

Travis Reese became our Director and V.P.-Direztdrechnology in 1999. From 1997 through 1999, Rieese had been a senior network
administrator at St. Vincent's Hospital in Santefew Mexico. During 1997, Mr. Reese was a compsystems engineer with Deloitte &
Touche. From 1995 until 1997, Mr. Reese was Viasident with Digital Publishing Resources, Inc.]@ernet service provider. From 1994
until 1995, Mr. Reese was a pilot with Continemtalines. From 1992 until 1994, Mr. Reese was afpitith Hang On, Inc., an airline
company. Mr. Reese has an Associates Degree imAetical Science from Texas State Technical College

There is no family relationship between or among @frour directors and executive officers.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We have no compensation committee and no nominatingmittee. Decisions concerning executive offam@npensation for fiscal 2003 we
made by the full Board of Directors. Eric S. Langendl Travis Reese are our only directors who a® @lir officers.

We have an Audit Committee of independent direcidiese members are Robert L. Watters, Alan Bergstand Steven Jenkins. The
primary purpose of our Audit Committee is to overser financial reporting process on behalf ofBloard of Directors. The activities and
responsibilities of our Audit Committee includeethomination or selection of the independent auglitihe review of the results of the audit;
and a detailed, overall corporate review of theqadey of our internal controls.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Charter forAadit Committee. The Charter establishes the pedeence of our Audit Committee and
sets forth the scope of our Audit Committee's dufiche purpose of our Audit Committee is to condwettinuing oversight of our financial
affairs. Our Audit Committee conducts an ongoingea® of our financial reports and other financiaflarmation prior to their being filed wit
the Securities and Exchange Commission, or otherpiisvided to the public. Our Audit Committee alswviews our systems, methods and
procedures of internal controls in the areas africial reporting, audits, treasury operationspamate finance, managerial, financial and SEC
accounting, compliance with law, and ethical corid@air Audit Committee is objective, and reviewsl assesses the work of our
independent accountants and our internal auditrtepat.

All of our Audit Committee members are independeiméctors. The Board of Directors elects the Merslrour Audit Committee annually.
The Members serve until their successors are dabterl and qualified. Unless our Audit Committeea@berson is elected by the full Board,
the Members of our Audit Committee designate a (pleason by majority vote of the all Members. All ivers are free from any
relationship that could conflict with Member's ip@gadent judgment. All Members are able to readwuarittrstand fundamental financial
statements, including a balance sheet, incomenséaiie and cash flow statement. At least one Merhaspast employment experience in
finance or accounting, requisite professional fiediion in accounting, or other comparable experéeor background, including a current or
past position as a chief executive or financiailceif or other senior officer with financial overstgesponsibilities.

CERTAIN SECURITIES FILINGS

Based on a review of the forms submitted to the @amy during the fiscal year ended September 303,208 believe that all persons subject
to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act in conneciiith their relationship with us have complied otinaely basis.

CODE OF ETHICS
The Company has adopted a code of ethics foriitgipal Executive and Senior Financial Officers ghhis attached hereto as Exhibit 14.
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ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table reflects all forms of comperisatfor services to us for the fiscal years endegt&mber 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 of
certain executive officers.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TAB

Annual Compensation

Other
Name and Annual
Principal Compen-
Position Year Salary Bonus sation (1)
® & O
Eric Langan
2003 $ 260,000 -O- -0-
2002 $ 260,000 -O- -0-
2001 $239,600 -O- -0-

Mr. Langan is our Chairman, a Director, Chief Exe
Financial Officer.

Travis Reese

2003 $ 158,855 -0- -0-
2002 $ 137,500 -0- -0-
2001 $102,000 -O- -0-

Mr. Reese is a Director and V.P.-Director o

(1) We provide certain executive officers certain
value of such benefits does not exceed th
annual compensation, the amounts are omit

LE
Long Term Compensation
Awards Payouts
Securities
Restricted Underlying All Other

Stock  Options/ LTIP  Compen-
Awards SARs Payouts sation

®) ) ®

-0- 5000 -0- -O-
-0- -0- -0- -0-
-0- 5000 -0- -O-

cutive Officer, President and Acting Chief

-0- 5000 -0- -O-
-0- -0- -0- -0-
-0- 5000 -0- -O-

f Technology

personal benefits. Since the
e lesser of $50,000 or 10% of
ted.

OPTION/SAR GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR (Individual G rants)

Number of Percent of Total
Securities Options/SARs
Underlying Granted To
Options/SARs Employees In

Name Granted Fiscal Year
# %

Eric Langan 5,000 shares (1) -0-%

Travis Reese 5,000 shares (1)

(1) There were no exercises of options by these p

ended September 30, 2003

Exercise of Expiration
Base Price Date
$/share

$ 1.40 9/10/2008

$  1.40 9/10/2008

ersons during the fiscal year



AGGREGATED OPTION/SAR EXERC ISES IN

LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FY-END OPT ION/SAR VALUES
Number Of Unex ercised
Securities Und erlying Value of Unexercised
Options/SARs In-The-Money Options/
Shares At FY-End SARs At FY-End
Acquired On Value Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name Exercise  Realized Unexercisable Unexercisable
# $ # $
Eric Langan -0- (1) -0- 200,000/ -0-  $1,750 / $-0-
Travis Reese  -0- (1) -0- 50,000/ -0-  $1,750 / $-0-
(1) There were no exercises of options by these persons during the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2003

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

We do not currently pay any cash directors' feaswe pay the expenses of our directors in attendoard meetings. In September 2003, we
issued 10,000 options to each Director who is a begrof our audit committee and 5,000 options toaiber Directors. These options have a
strike price of $1.40 per share and expire in Saptr 2008.

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain informatianDecember 9, 2003, with respect to the benefiialership of shares of Common Stocl
(i) each person known to us who owns beneficialyrerthan 5% of the outstanding shares of CommockS(d) each of our directors, (iii)
each of our executive officers and (iv) all of @xecutive officers and directors as a group. Unbtiserwise indicated, each stockholder has
sole voting and investment power with respect tosthares shown.
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Name and Address Number
of Shares

Eric S. Langan
505 North Belt, Suite 630
Houston, Texas 77060 1,021,200(1) C

Robert L. Watters
315 Bourbon Street
New Orleans, Louisiana 70130 35,000(2) C

Steven L. Jenkins
16815 Royal Crest Drive, Suite 160
Houston, Texas 77058 20,000(3) C

Travis Reese
505 North Belt, Suite 630
Houston, Texas 77060 55,475(4) C

Alan Bergstrom
707 Rio Grande, Suite 200
Austin, Texas 78701 35,000(2) C

E. S. Langan. L.P.
505 North Belt, Suite 630
Houston, Texas 77060 578,632 C

Ralph McElroy
1211 Choquette
Austin, Texas, 78757 817,147(5) C

William Friedrichs
16815 Royal Crest Dr., Suite 260

Houston, Texas 77058 401,850(6) C
All of our Directors and

Officers as a

Group of five persons 1,166,675(7) C

(1) Mr. Langan has sole voting and investment powe
owns directly. Mr. Langan has shared voting and
shares that he owns indirectly through E. S. La
general partner of E. S. Langan, L.P. This am
purchase up to 200,000 shares of common stock th

(2) Includes options to purchase up to 35,000 sh
presently exercisable.

(3) Includes options to purchase up to 20,000 sh
presently exercisable.

(4) Includes options to purchase up to 50,000 sh
presently exercisable.

(5) Includes 66,545 shares of common stock t
conversion of a convertible debenture held by Mr. M
shares of common stock that would be issuable upo
promissory note held by Mr. McElroy.
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Title Percent
of Class of Class (8)

ommon Stock  27.6%

ommon Stock  0.9%

ommon Stock 0.5%

ommon Stock 1.5%

ommon Stock 0.9%

ommon Stock 15.6%

ommon Stock  22.1%

ommon Stock 10.9%

ommon Stock  31.5%

r for 242,568 shares that he
investment power for 578,632
ngan, L.P. Mr. Langan is the
ount also includes options to
at are presently exercisable.

ares of common stock that are

ares of common stock that are

ares of common stock that are

hat would be issuable upon
cElroy. Also includes 52,135
n conversion of a convertible



(6) Includes 170,000 shares owned by WMF Investmen ts, Inc. Mr. Friedrichs is a
control person of WMF Investments, Inc.

(7) Includes options to purchase up to 340,000 sh ares of common stock that are
presently exercisable.

(8) These percentages exclude treasury shares in the calculation of percentage
of class.

We are not aware of any arrangements that couldtriesa change of control.
The disclosure required by Item 201(d) of RegulaeB is set forth in ITEM 5 herein.
ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Our Board of Directors has adopted a policy thatbusiness affairs will be conducted in all respdmt standards applicable to publicly held
corporations and that we will not enter into anfufe transactions and/or loans between us andfficers, directors and 5% shareholders
unless the terms are no less favorable than cauttbtained from independent, third parties and lélpproved by a majority of our
independent and disinterested directors. In ouwwv#dl of the transactions described below meet skandard.

In May 2002, we loaned $100,000 to Eric Langan wghaur Chief Executive Officer. The promissory niteinsecured, bears interest at 11%
and is amortized over a period of ten years. The pontains a provision that in the event Mr. Lanfgaves the Company for any reason, the
note immediately becomes due and payable in fak Balance of the note was $92,626 at Septemb@083,and is included in other assets
in our balance sheet.

ITEM 13. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Exhibits
Exhibit 14 - Code of Ethics.
Exhibit 21 - Subsidiaries of the Registr ant.

Exhibit 31.1 - Certification of Chief Ex ecutive Officer of Rick's

Cabaret International, Inc. Corporation requiredjaye 13a-14(1) or Rule 15d - 14(a) of the Seasittxchange Act of 1934, as adopted
pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibit 31.2 - Certification of Chief Financial @fér of Rick's Cabaret International, Inc. Corpmmatequired by Rule 13a-14(1) or Rule 15d-
14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, aptatl pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 32.1 - Certification of Chief Executive @fér of Rick's Cabaret International, Inc. Corpimatpursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Section 1350 of IRl 63.

Exhibit 32.2 - Certification of Chief Financial @fér of Rick's Cabaret International, Inc. Corpmmatpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

The Company filed Form 8-K relating to the sald atirus Entertainment Companies, Inc. containing 2e- Acquisition and Disposition of
Assets and Item 7 - Financial Statement and ExhditJune 12, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of Sectionflb¢d) of the Exchange Act, the Registrant haseduhis report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, eceinber 29, 2003.

Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.

/sl Eric S. Langan

By: FEric S. Langan
Director, Chief Executive Oficer,
President and Chief Financial Oficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Aistréport has been signed below by the followiagspns in the capacities and on the dates
indicated:

Signature Title Date

/sl Eric S. Langan Director, Chief Executive Oficer, Decenber 29, 2003
------------------------- President and Chief Financial

Eric S. Langan O ficer

/sl  Travis Reese Di rector and Decenber 29, 2003

------------------------- V.P.-Director of Technol ogy
Travis Reese

/sl Robert L. Watters Di rector Decenber 29, 2003

Robert L. Watters

/sl Alan Bergstrom Director Decenber 29, 2003

Al an Bergstrom

/sl Steven Jenkins Di rector Decenber 29, 2003

Steven Jenkins
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Rickabaret International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.safx$idiaries, as of September 30, 2
and 2002, and the related consolidated stateménfsetations, stockholders' equity, and cash fliwshe years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compangisagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with aud&iagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAsnerica. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether the financial statsnaea free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidsnpporting the amounts and disclosures in then6iig statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referdlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial position of Rick's
Cabaret International, Inc. as of September 303200 2002, and the consolidated results of thggrations and their cash flows for the y
then ended in conformity with accounting principigserally accepted in the United States of America

Whitley Penn
Dallas, Texas
November 21, 200



RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHE

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Trade
Other, net
Marketable securities
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Other assets:
Goodwill
Other

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Minority interests

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $.10 par, 1,000,000 shares
authorized, none outstanding

Common stock, $.01 par, 15,000,000 shares
authorized, 4,608,678 shares issued at
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Accumulated deficit

Less 908,530 and 851,030 shares of stock held in
treasury at cost in 2003 and 2002, respectively

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

, INC.
ETS

SEPTEMBER 30,
2003 2002

$ 604,865 $ 733,366

45,319 35,749
213,886 190,888
135,000 -
230,451 210,802

83,647 63,897

1,313,168 1,234,702
8,777,057 9,122,253

1,962,848 1,883,007
202,439 197,358

$12,255,512 $12,437,320

$ 189,208 $ 274,659
622,216 533,068
449,439 459,972

1,260,863 1,267,699

3,576,896 4,147,381

4,837,759 5,415,080

36,032 80,164

46,087 46,087

11,273,149 11,273,149
120,000 -

(2,763,735) (3,202,029)

8,675,501 8,117,207

1,293,780 1,175,131

$12,255,512 $12,437,320




RICK'S CABARET INTERNATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF O

Revenues
Sales of alcoholic beverages
Sales of food and merchandise
Service revenues
Internet revenues
Other

Operating expenses

Cost of goods sold

Salaries and wages

Other general and administrative:
Taxes and permits
Charge card fees
Rent
Legal and professional
Advertising and marketing
Impairment of goodwill
Other

Income from operations
Other income (expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on sale or disposition of assets
Other
Income before the following items:
Minority interests
Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting cha

Net income (loss)

Weighted average number of common shares outstandin

AL, INC.
PERATIONS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2003 2002

$6,671,498 $6,380,914
1,661,358 1,583,433
5,333,889 5,210,950
1,053,188 2,112,823
339,636 269,182

15,059,569 15,557,302

2,194,940 2,970,139
5,393,708 5,143,549

2,074,067 1,978,360
254,953 261,952
336,592 219,209
714,250 665,677
817,328 653,884

- 325,776

2,915,784 2,714,776

357,947 623,980

16,875 22,245
(384,221)  (370,401)
345,820  (14,037)

67,515 765

403,936 262,552

34,358  (1,348)
- (2,532,384)

$ 438,294 $(2,271,180)

nge $ 012 $ 0.06

$ 012 $ (0.54)

g 3,729,167 4,241,483




RICK'S CA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN

S
COM
NUMBE
OF SHA
Balance at September 30, 2001 4,598,
Net loss
Shares issued for cash 10,
Purchases of treasury stock
Balance at September 30, 2002 4,608,

Net income
Change in available-for-sale securities

Comprehensive income for year

Purchases of treasury stock

Balance at September 30, 2003 4,608,
TREAS
STO
AMO
Balance at September 30, 2001 $ (7
Net loss
Shares issued for cash
Purchases of treasury stock (1,10
Balance at September 30, 2002 (1,17
Net income

Change in available-for-sale securities
Comprehensive income for year

Purchases of treasury stock (11

Balance at September 30, 2003 $(1,29

BARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
TS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
EPTEMBER 30, 2003

ACCUMULATED
MON STOCK OTHER

R PAID-IN COMPREHENSIVE ACCUMUL
RES AMOUNT CAPITAL INCOME DEFIC

678 $45,987 $11,257,449 $ -$ (930

- - - - (211
000 100 15,700 -

678 46,087 11,273,149 - (3,202

- 438
- - - 120,000

678 $46,087 $11,273,149 $ 120,000 $ (2,763

TREASURY
STOCK

ATED NUMBER
IT  OF SHARES

,849) 30,700
,180) -

- 820,330

,735) 908,530

URY

CK TOTAL

------ STOCKHOLDERS'
UNT EQUITY

3,619) $ 10,298,968
- (2,271,180)

- 15,800
1,512)  (1,101,512)

5,131) 6,942,076

- 438,294
- 120,000

3,780) $ 7,381,721
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RICK'S CABARET INTERN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Impairment of goodwill
Minority interests
(Gain) loss on sale of subsidiary
(Gain) loss on sale or disposition of propert
Change in accounting principle
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions
Proceeds from disposition of subsidiary
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash used in operating activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of treasury stock
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

Cash paid during the year for income taxes

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended September 30, 2003, the

vehicle and the related note to an individua

was $69,342 which approximated the fair value

transfer.

During the year ended September 30, 2002, t

notes payable to two individuals to acqui
stock.

ATIONAL, INC.
OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2003 2002

$ 438,294 $(2,271,180)

531,561 490,021
- 325,776
(34,358) 1,348
(342,251) -
y and equipment  (3,569) 6,240
- 2,532,384

37,432 153,015
(19,649)  (14,502)
(24,831) 17,580

3,607 44,863

586,326 1,285,545

(150,000) -
180,000 -

(162,220)  (933,472)
47,718 7,900

(84,502) (925,572)

(118,649) (156,211)
- 150,000
(511,676) (325,024)

s (128,501) 28,738
733,366 704,628

$ 604,865 $ 733,366

$374,270 $ 370,401

Company transferred a Company
I. The remaining note payable
of the vehicle on the date of

he Company issued $945,301 in
re 763,830 shares of treasury



RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 AND 2002
A. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Rick's Cabaret International, Inc. (the "Comparig'a Texas corporation incorporated in 1994. The@any currently owns and operates
nightclubs that offer live adult entertainment taesant, and bar operations. These nightclubsogegdd in Houston, Austin and San Antonio,
Texas, as well as Minneapolis, Minnesota. The Camdso owns and operates several adult entertainimiernet websites. The Company's
corporate headquarters is located in Houston, Texas

B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the Company's significant accountintigies consistently applied in the preparationh&f accompanying consolidated
financial statements follows:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounts are maintained and the consolidateddial statements have been prepared using theshbasis of accounting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Sant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettaertain reported amounts in the financialesteents and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from these estimated assumptions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith a maturity of three months or less when pasgt to be cash equivalents. At
September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company had ihoiseestments included in cash and cash equival€éhts Company maintains deposits
primarily in one financial institution, which may times exceed amounts covered by insurance prawgehe U.S. Federal Deposit Insura
Corporation ("FDIC"). At September 30, 2003 and2a8e uninsured portion of these deposits apprateth$95,000 and $211,000,
respectively. The Company has not incurred losskesed to its cash on deposit with banks.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable trade is comprised of creditl charges, which are generally converted to catiwo to five days after a purchase is
made. The Company's accounts receivable othenipiised of employee advances and other miscellanemeivables. The Company
recognizes allowances for doubtful accounts whasetl on management judgment, circumstances indfietaccounts receivable will not
collected. Accordingly, accounts receivables otirershown net of the allowance for doubtful accewftapproximately $0 and $7,300 as of
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities at September 30, 2003 cook@immon stock. Statement of Financial Accountitgndards ("SFAS") No. 115,
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgSiecurities, requires certain investments berdsmbat fair value or amortized cost. The
appropriate classification of the investments irkmatable equity is determined at the time of pusehand re-evaluated at each balance sheet
date. As of September 30, 2003, the Company's rredoleesecurities were classified as available-fde;swhich are carried at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses reported as other etrapsive income (loss) within the stockholdersitggection of the balance sheet. The

of marketable equity securities sold is determioed specific identification basis. The fair vabfenarketable equity securities is based on
guoted market prices.

INVENTORIES

Inventories include alcoholic beverages, food, @othpany merchandise. Inventories are carried dbther of cost or average cost, which
approximates actual cost determined on a firstifist-out ("FIFO") basis or market.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depi@tia computed using the straight-line methodrdlie estimated useful lives of the assets
for financial reporting purposes. Buildings havéreated useful lives between 31-40 years. Furnjtegeipment and leasehold improvements
have estimated useful lives between five and sgears. Expenditures for major renewals and bettetsitbat extend the useful lives are
capitalized. Expenditures for normal maintenanatrapairs are expensed as incurred. The cost efsassld or abandoned and the related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from tlodaiats and any gains or losses are charged otetdadithe accompanying statement of
operations of the respective period.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
GOODWILL

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Gobddwd Other Intangibles Assets, which addresseadheunting for goodwill and other
intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill imtahgible assets with indefinite lives are nogenamortized, but reviewed on an annual
basis for impairment. The Company adopted SFAS#¥e October 1, 2001.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue at the point-ofigad@ receipt of cash, check, or credit card charpes includes VIP Room
Memberships, since the memberships are non-reflmdald the Company has no significant obligatiarféiture performance.

ADVERTISING AND MARKETING

Advertising and marketing expenses are primarilygosed of costs related to public advertisemerdsggareaways, which are used for
promotional purposes. Advertising and marketingegiges are expensed as incurred and are incluageiating expenses.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are determined using thditialmethod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Aceting for Income Taxes. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for therk tax consequences attributable to differebesdseen the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and tresipective tax bases. Deferred tax assets dbitities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearghith those temporary differences are expectdxttrecovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changeirrates is recognized in income in the period ithdudes the enactment date. In addition, a
valuation allowance is established to reduce afgrdm tax asset for which it is determined thé inore likely than not that some portion of
the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Company reports comprehensive income in acnoed@ith the provisions of SFAS No. 130, Reportt@mprehensive Income.
Comprehensive income consists of net income antsdlisses) on available-for-sale marketable séesidnd is presented in the
consolidated statements of changes in stockholdgusty.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The Company computes earnings (loss) per sharcor@dance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per SharASI¥o. 128 provides for the
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per sHaasic earnings per share includes no dilutioniamdmputed by dividing income available
to common stockholders by the weighted average sumfoccommon shares outstanding for the periodutBil earnings per share reflect the
potential dilution of securities that could shardhie earnings of the Company. Because the Congpaotential dilutive securities are anti-
dilutive, the accompanying presentation is onlpasic earnings per share.

Stock options of 498,000 and 643,500 for the yeaded September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectivelg, lieen excluded from earnings per
share due to the stock options being anti-dilutive.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the reporting requirements cASMNo. 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Finah¢nstruments, the Company
calculates the fair value of its assets and liaddiwhich qualify as financial instruments undas tstatement and includes this additional
information in the notes to the consolidated finahstatements when the fair value is differennttt@ carrying value of these financial
instruments. The estimated fair value of cash exjeius, accounts receivable, accounts payable@mded liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts due to the relatively short matuwf these instruments. The carrying value of sbad long-term debt also approximates
fair value since these instruments bear markes @ftenterest. None of these instruments are reltrfiding purposes.

STOCK OPTIONS

At September 30, 2003, the Company has stock agptiatstanding, which are described more fully ineNld. The Company accounts for its
stock options under the recognition and measurepramtiples of Accounting Principles Board ("APBDpinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and related InterpogtstiThe following table illustrates the effectrmt income and earnings per share if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition @mions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Bag&mimpensation, to stock-based
employee compensation.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
STOCK OPTIONS - CONTINUED

The following presents pro forma net income (l@as] per share data as if a fair value accountinthadehad been used to account for stock-
based compensation:

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2 003 2002
Net income (loss), as reported $438 ,294  $(2,271,180)

Less total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under the fair value
based method for all awards (98 ,882)  (198,077)

Pro forma net income (loss) $339 412 $(2,469,257)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic and diluted - as reported $ 0.12 $ (0.54)

Basic and diluted - pro forma $ 0.09 $ (0.58)

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting StandardsrddqaFASB") issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for 2@r Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. SEMNo. 150 requires that certain financial instrutagwhich under previous guidance could
be accounted for as equity, be classified as Itadslin the accompanying balance sheet. SFAS B0.id effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, andtiserwise effective for the Company in the fougtharter of 2003. Adoption of SFAS No.
150 did not have an impact on the Company's restittperations or financial condition.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation4$o.Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitieskaterpretation of ARB No. 51, which
provides guidance on the identification of and répg for variable interest entities. Interpretatio. 46 expands the criteria for considerz
in determining whether a variable interest entitgidd be consolidated. Interpretation No. 46 wésotive immediately for variable interest
entities created after January 31, 2003, and tiaarinterest entities in which an enterprise wistan interest after that date. Interpretation
No. 46 was effective for the Company in the secquarter of 2003 for variable interest entities acgfibefore February 1, 2003. Adoptior
Interpretation No. 46 did not have an impact onGloenpany's results of operations or financial ctoui
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
B. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedbbform to the current year presentation.
C. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The cost and fair value of available-for-sale meakke securities as of September 30, 2003 is &sAfs]

UNREALIZED UNREA LIZED FAIR
2003 COST GAINS LOS SES VALUE
Marketable securities $15,000 $ 120,000 $ - $135,000

D. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following:

SEPTEMBER 30,

2003 2002
Buildings and land $ 8,970,743 $8,981 741
Leasehold improvements 311,411 153 ,289
Furniture 595,743 625 ,101
Equipment 1,322,624 1,456 ,834
Total property and equipment 11,200,521 11,216 ,965
Less accumulated depreciation 2,423,464 2,094 712
Property and equipment, net $ 8,777,057 $ 9,122 ,253

E. GOODWILL

During fiscal 2002 the Company adopted SFAS No, Gtibdwill and Other Intangibles Assets, under Wwhgoodwill is no longer amortize
but instead tested for impairment at least annu@lye Company's annual evaluation was performed 8gptember 30, 2003. No impairment
losses were identified as a result of this evaduati
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

E. GOODWILL - CONTINUED

The Company performed a transitional impairmerttaégs goodwill as of October 1, 2001 and deteradi there should be an impairment of
goodwill recorded, relating to portions of the Camp's goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No. 14@rae-off of approximately $2,532,000
has been accounted for as a change in accouniimge, increasing the Company's loss for the yeated September 30, 2002.
Additionally, goodwill additions amounting to appimately $326,000 during the year ended Septem®e2@02 were also written off during
the year ended September 30, 2002. All of the Caoryipggoodwill as of September 30, 2003 and 2002te@ to the Company's club segm

F. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

SEPTEMBER 30,
2 003 2002

Note payable at prime (as
determined by the Wall Street
Journal) plus 1%, matures

December 2004 *$ 331,364 $ 364,167
Notes payable at 9%, matures

February 2018 * 2, 198,734 2,270,095
Notes payable at 12%, matures

March 2026 * 143,559 144,709
Note payable at 9%, matures

March 2006 * 296,795 300,052
Note payable at 10%, matures

August 2010, unsecured 210,260 230,365

Note payable with imputed interest
at 7%, matures January 2006,

unsecured 602,739 795,301
Note payable at 11%, matures June
2005 * 186,843 278,590

Other notes payable ranging from
7% to 10%, maturing

September 2005 * 56,041 224,074
Total debt 4, 026,335 4,607,353
Less current portion 449,439 459,972
Total long-term debt $3, 576,896 $4,147,381

* Collateralized by real estate



RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
F. LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Future maturities of long-term debt consist of fiblllowing:

2004 $ 449,439
2005 460,782
2006 673,533
2007 377,665
2008 148,260
Thereafter 1,916,656

G. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense for the years presented dfffens the "expected” federal income tax expense edetpby applying the U.S. federal
statutory rate of 34% to earnings before incomesdsr the years ended September 30, as a reshk édllowing:

2003 2002
Computed expected tax expense
(benefit) $149,020 $(772,201 )
Deferred tax asset valuation
allowance (149,020) 772,201
Total income tax expense $ -3

The significant components of the Company's dedieta assets and liabilities at September 30, sifellws:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Goodwill $ 501,606 $ 739,130
Property and equipment 51,179 23,565
Net operating losses 223,097 158,896

Unrealized gain on marketable

securities (40,800) -
Valuation allowance (735,082) (921,591)
$ $

The Company has established a valuation allowambdly reserve the deferred tax assets at SepteB8)e2003 and 2002 due to the
uncertainty of the timing and amounts of futureatale income. At September 30, 2003, the Companyatregt operating loss carryforward:
approximately $656,000, which expire in 2011 thto2§18.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

H. STOCK OPTIONS

In 1995, the Company adopted the 1995 Stock Oftlan (the "1995 Plan") for employees and directoréiugust 1999 the Company
adopted the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the "1999 Plaullectively, "the Plans"). The options grantetter the Plans may be either incentive
stock options, or non-qualified options. The Plarsadministered by the Board of Directors or lopapensation committee of the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors has the exclugigeer to select individuals to receive grantggtablish the terms of the options grante
each participant, provided that all options grardedll be granted at an exercise price equal feaat 85% of the fair market value of the
common stock covered by the option on the grard datl to make all determinations necessary or algisinder the Plans.

Following is a summary of options for the yearsesh@eptember 30:

WEIG HTED WEIGHTED

AVE RAGE AVERAGE

EXER CISE EXERCISE

2003 PR ICE 2002 PRICE

Outstanding at beginning of year 643,500 $ 2.40 604,500 $ 2.39
Granted 40,000 1.40 64,000 2.56
Expired (185,500) 2.33 (25,000) 2.52
Exercised - - - -
Outstanding at end of year 498,000 2.35 643,500 2.40
Exercisable at end of year 458,000 $ 2.41 582,000 $ 2.37

Weighted-average remaining
contractual life 1.58 years

The Company has elected to follow APB No. 25 ahakee interpretations in accounting for its empgtock options because the alterne
fair value accounting provided for under SFAS N23,JAccounting for Stock Based Compensation, reguine use of option valuation
models that were not developed for use in valumgleyee stock options. See footnote B for relatiedldsures.

Under APB No. 25, no compensation expense is redonhen the exercise price of the Company's emplei@k option equals the fair
value of the underlying stock on the date of gr@umpensation equal to the intrinsic value of erpgdostock options is recorded when the
exercise price of the stock option is less tharfdirevalue of the underlying stock on the dategynt. Any resulting compensation is
amortized to expense over the remaining vestinp@eiof the options on a straight-line basis. lheryears ended September 30, 2003 and
2002, no amounts were recorded to compensatiomsgpelated to stock options issued to employees.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
H. STOCK OPTIONS - CONTINUED

Information regarding pro forma net income is reediby SFAS 123, and has been determined as @dnapany had accounted for its
employee stock options under the fair value methfd@FAS No. 123. The fair value of these options wstimated at the date of grant usir
Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the follogzassumptions:

2003
Volatility 1 65%
Weighted-average expected lives 3.0 yea rs
Expected dividend yield -
Weighted-average risk free rates 3 .0%

The options granted in the year ended Septemb&0B2 were granted near year-end, and just aftargred were cancelled. No proforma
expense for these options was calculated as thacimyas not deemed material.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was dgwvetiofor use in estimating the fair value of tradptions, which have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In addifioption valuation models require the input ofttygsubjective assumptions including the
expected stock price volatility. Because changehlersubjective input assumptions can materiafigcathe fair value estimate, in
management's opinion, the existing models do ncgéssarily provide a reliable single measure ofélrevalue of its employee stock options.

. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES
LEASES

The Company leases certain equipment and faciliteer operating leases, of which rent expenseappsoximately $301,000 and $219,000
for the years ended September 30, 2003 and 20§} ctvely.

Future minimum annual lease obligations as of $epés 30, 2003 approximate the following:

2004 $ 364,000
2005 348,000
2006 315,000
2007 252,000
2008 170,000
Thereafter 228,000



RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES - CONTINUED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT - RELATED PARTY

The Company has a three-year employment agreenmtmEvic S. Langan (the "Langan Agreement”). Thadan Agreement extends
through January 1, 2004 and provides for an arvese salary of $260,000. The Langan Agreementpatsoades for participation in all
benefit plans maintained by the Company for sadaei@ployees.

J. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following information is presented in accordamdth SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segmensdnterprise and Related
Information. The Company is engaged in adult ngghbs and adult entertainment websites ("Interndtie Company has identified such
segments based on management responsibility anhthee of the Company's products, services and.cbsere are no major distinctions in
geographical areas served as all operations dhe ibnited States. The Company measures segmditt(foss) as income

(loss) from operations. Total assets are thosdsassatrolled by each reportable segment.

The following table sets forth certain informatiamout each segment's financial information fontbars ended September 30:

2003 2002
Business segment sales:
Night clubs $14,006,381 $13,444,479
Internet 1,053,188 2,112,823
$15,059,569 $15,557,302

Business segment operating income:

Night clubs $1,934,574 $2,121,642

Internet 36,421 169,793

General corporate (1,613,048 ) (1,667,455)
$ 357,947 $ 623,980

Business segment capital expenditures:

Night clubs $ 110,198 $ 495,043
Internet 35,310 357,500
General corporate 16,712 80,929

$ 162,220 $ 933,472



RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

J. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

2003 2002

Business segment depreciation:
Night clubs $ 420,31 2 $ 385,944
Internet 40,96 0 35,600
General corporate 70,28 9 68,477

$ 531,56 1 $ 490,021
Business segment assets:
Night clubs $10,452,76 4  $10,086,465
Internet 143,36 5 200,456
General corporate 1,659,38 3 2,150,399

$12,255,51 2 $12,437,320

K. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In May 2002, the Company loaned $100,000 to Eriagaa, Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Tl¢ens unsecured, bears interest at
11% and is amortized over a period of ten years.Adte contains a provision that in the event Mingan leaves the Company for any
reason, the note immediately becomes due and gayahlll. The balance of the note was approxinya$813,000 and $99,000 at September
30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and is includeattier assets in the accompanying consolidatechbalsheet.

L. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company sponsors a Simple IRA plan (the "Plamtjch covers all of the Company's corporate eygxs. The Plan allows the corpot
employees to contribute up to the maximum amouatvald by law, with the Company making a matchingtdbution of 3% of the
employee's salary. Expenses related to this Plarogimated $24,000 and $27,000 for the years eSdgdember 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

M. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

On February 19, 2003, the Company acquired 51% alonftthe Wild Horse Cabaret adult nightclub nelabby Airport, Houston, Texas and
will operate it as part of the Company's populaiCXTabaret group. The purchase price was $150,0@hich approximately $70,000 was
allocated to property and equipment and $80,000allasated to goodwiill.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
M. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - CONTINUED

On June 12, 2003, the Company entered into an Assehase Agreement with Taurus Entertainment Campalnc. (“Taurus"), whereby
the Company acquired all the assets and liabildfegaurus in exchange for 3,752,008 shares ofdsaaf the 4,002,008 that the Company
owned plus $20,000 in cash. The Company also ezéar Indemnification and Transaction Fee AgreemvihtTaurus for which the
Company received $270,000, payable $140,000 aingowith $60,000 due on July 15, 2003, and $70@@® on August 15, 2003.
Subsequent to year-end then maturity of the $70v@extended to February 17, 2004 at a rate of, &8%bis included in other accounts
receivable in the accompanying balance sheets.
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Exhibit 14 - Code of Ethics
RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CODE OF ETHICS FOR PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND SENIOR F INANCIAL OFFICERS
[. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

This Code of Ethics for Principal Executive and iBefinancial Officers (hereinafter referred totlas "Code") helps maintain Ricks Cabaret
International, Inc.'s (hereinafter referred totas tTCompany") standards of business conduct angdrehisompliance with legal requirements,
specifically, but not limited to, Section 406 o&tBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and SEC rules pronedgdnereunder.

In addition to securing compliance with legal regaoients, the purpose of the Code is to deter wrmingcand promote ethical conduct, and
full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabkchtisure of financial information in the periodaports of the Company. The matters covered
in this Code are of the utmost importance to then@any, our stockholders and our business partandsare essential to our ability to
conduct our business in accordance with our stzegs.

Financial executives hold an important and elevadéglin corporate governance and are uniquelyllapnd empowered to ensure that
stockholders' interests are appropriately balangedected and preserved. Accordingly, this Codeigdes principles to which financial
executives are expected to adhere and advocate Chidie embodies rules regarding individual and pesgronsibilities, as well as
responsibilities to the company, the public anceath

II. APPLICATION

This Code is applicable to the following persoraréinafter referred to as the "Officers"):

1. The Company's principal executive officers;

2. The Company's principal financial officers;

3. The Company's principal accounting officer ontcoller; and

4. Persons performing similar functions.

lll. CODE OF ETHICS:

Each Officer shall adhere to and advocate thevatig principles and responsibilities governing ssional and ethical conduct:
1. Act with honesty and integrity, avoiding actoalapparent conflicts of interest in personal arafgssional relationships.

1



2. Provide information that is full, fair, accurabtemplete, objective, relevant, timely, and untierdable to the Company's Board of
Directors, the Securities and Exchange CommissienCompany's stockholders, and the public.

3. Comply with applicable governmental laws, rukesqd regulations.

4. Act in good faith, responsibly, with due carempetence and diligence, without misrepresentinteriza facts or allowing your independ
judgment to be subordinate

5. Take all reasonable measures to protect thedwmarifality of nonpublic information about the Company acquired ia tburse of your wo
except when authorized or otherwise legally obédab disclose such information and to not use sodffidential information for personal
advantage.

6. Assure responsible use of and control overssiéts and resources employed or entrusted to you.
7. Promptly report to the Chairman of the Audit Qoittee:
a. any information you may have regarding any vioteof this Code;

b. any actual or apparent conflict of interest lesw personal and/or professional relationshipshimvg management or any other employee
with a role in financial reporting disclosures oternal controls;

c. any information you might have concerning evitkenf a material violation of the securities oresttaws, rules or regulations applicable to
the Company and its operations;

d. significant deficiencies in the design or opierabf internal controls that could adversely affé® Company's ability to record, process,
summarize or report financial data; or

e. any fraud, whether or not material, that inveluganagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Company's financial
reporting, disclosures or internal controls.

IV. REPORTING PROCEDURE, PROCESS AND ACCOUNTABILITY
As discussed above, Officers shall promptly repast violation of this Code to the Chairman of ttanany's Audit Committee.
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Reports of violations under this Code receivedhgy@hairman of the Audit Committee shall be inggted by the Audit Committee. If the
Audit Committee finds a violation of this Codesltall refer the matter to the full Board of Diresto

In the event of a finding that a violation of tii®de has occurred, appropriate action shall benttiiad is reasonably designed to deter
wrongdoing and to promote accountability for adheeeto this Code, and may include written noticethé individual involved of the
determination that there has been a violation, wenisy the Board, demotion or re-assignment ofrti&idual involved, suspension with or
without pay or benefits, and up to and includifiggpropriate, termination of the individual's emyrhent. In determining what action is
appropriate in a particular case, the Board of @aes (or the independent directors of the Boarthaxase may be) shall take into account all
relevant information, including the nature and siy®f the violation, whether the violation wasiagle occurrence or repeated occurrences,
whether the violation appears to have been inteatior inadvertent, whether the individuals in diseshad been advised prior to the
violation as to the proper course of action andthereor not the individual in question had comndittgher violations in the past.

V. ANONYMOUS REPORTING

Any violation of this Code and any violation by t8empany or its directors or officers of the setbesilaws, rules, or regulations, or other
laws, rules, or regulations applicable to the Comypaay be reported to the Chairman of the Audit @uttee anonymously.

VI. NO RETALIATION
It is against the Company's policy to retaliatamy way against an Officer for good faith reportofg/iolations of this Code.
VII. WAIVER AND AMENDMENT

The Company is committed to continuously reviewamgl updating its policies and procedures. Therefbre Code is subject to modificatit
Any amendment or waiver of any provision of thisd€anust be approved in writing by the Company'sr@oé Directors and promptly
disclosed pursuant to applicable laws and reguiatio

VIIl. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF CODE OF ETHICSOR PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND SENIOR FINANCIAL
OFFICERS

| have received and read the Company's Code of&fbr Principal Executive and Senior Financiali€#fs (the "Code"). | understand the
standards and policies contained in the Code addrstand that there may be additional policieswslapplicable to my job. | agree to
comply with the Code in all respects.



If | have questions concerning the meaning or apfiin of the Code, any Company policies, or tigalland regulatory requirements
applicable to my job, | know that | can consultiwibhe Chairman of the Audit Committee, knowing thgt questions or reports will remain
confidential to the fullest extent possible.

| understand that my agreement to comply with @osle does not constitute a contract of employment.

Officer Name
Signature

Date
Please sign and return this form to the Companiyar@an of the Audit Committee.
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Exhibit 21 - Subsidiaries of Registrant

Below is the list of subsidiaries of Rick's Cabaret

Name: State of.
Incorporatio

Trumps, Inc. Texas

Tantric Enterprises, Inc. Texas

RCI Holdings, Inc. Texas

RCI Entertainment Texas, Inc. Texas

RCI Entertainment Minnesota, Inc. Minnesota

RCI Internet Services, Inc. Texas

RCI Entertainment Houston, Inc. Texas

RCI Entertainment San Antonio, Inc. Texas

RCI Internet Holdings, Inc. Texas

RCI Entertainment Fort Worth, Inc.  Texas

Citation Land LLC Texas

XTC Cabaret, Inc. Texas

Bobby's Novelty, Inc. Texas

Nocturnal Concepts, Inc. Texas

RCI Ventures, Inc. Texas

Broadstreets Cabaret, Inc. - Inactive Texas
RCI Debit Services, Inc. - Inactive Texas
Tantra Parking, Inc. - Inactive Texas
Tantra Dance, Inc. - Inactive Texas

SRD Vending Company, Inc. - Inactive Texas
RCI Billing, Inc. - Inactive Texas

International, Inc.:



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric S. Langan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1BK$Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of Rick's Cabaret Internatioimal. as of, and for, the periods presente
this report;

4. Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.'s other &grtg officer(s) and | are responsible for estdtilig) and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for Rick's Cabaret Internatiphad. and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating tok&¥dCabaret International, Inc., including its calitated subsidiaries, is made known to ut
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financélarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of Rick's Cabartrhational, Inc.'s disclosure controls and praces and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in Rickab&ret International, Inc.'s internal control ofieancial reporting that occurred during
Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.'s most recesudi year that has materially affected, or is reably likely to materially affect, Rick's
Cabaret International, Inc.'s internal control ofieancial reporting;

and



5. Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.'s other &g officer(s) and | have disclosed, based onruost recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to Rick's Cabaret Int¢imaal, Inc.'s auditors and the audit committe®uik's Cabaret International, Inc.'s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect Rick's Cab&rternational, Inc.'s ability to record, processmmarize and report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in Rick's Cabaret
International, Inc.'s internal control over finaalaieporting.

Date: Decenber 29, 2003 By: /sl Eric S. Langan
Eric S. Langan
Chi ef Executive Oficer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric S. Langan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1BK$Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of Rick's Cabaret Internatioimal. as of, and for, the periods presente
this report;

4. Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.'s other &grtg officer(s) and | are responsible for estdtilig) and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for Rick's Cabaret Internatiphad. and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating tok&¥dCabaret International, Inc., including its calitated subsidiaries, is made known to ut
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financélarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of Rick's Cabartrhational, Inc.'s disclosure controls and praces and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in Rickab&ret International, Inc.'s internal control ofieancial reporting that occurred during
Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.'s most recesudi year that has materially affected, or is reably likely to materially affect, Rick's
Cabaret International, Inc.'s internal control ofieancial reporting;

and



5. Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.'s other &g officer(s) and | have disclosed, based onruost recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to Rick's Cabaret Int¢imaal, Inc.'s auditors and the audit committe®uik's Cabaret International, Inc.'s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect Rick's Cab&rternational, Inc.'s ability to record, processmmarize and report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in Rick's Cabaret
International, Inc.'s internal control over finaalaieporting.

Date: Decenber 29, 2003 By: /sl Eric S. Langan
Eric S. Langan
Chief Financial Oficer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Sec.1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Rick's Qab#nternational, Inc. (the "Company") on FormK8B for the period ended September
30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Excha@gmmission on the date hereof (the "Report"), i¢ Br Langan, Chief Executive Officer
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Se®18S adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExajeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: December 29, 2003 By: /sl Eric S. Langan

Eric S. Langan
Chief Executive Oficer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Sec.1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Rick's Qab#nternational, Inc. (the "Company") on FormK8B for the period ended September
30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Excha@gemission on the date hereof (the "Report"), ic Br Langan, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Se®18S adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExajeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphlgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: December 29, 2003 By: /sl Eric S. Langan

Eric S. Langan
Chief Financial Oficer

End of Filing
Pawered By EDCAR

i

© 2005 | EDGAR Online, Inc.



